DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH & HUMAN SERVICES Office of Inspector General

Offive of Counsel to the Inspector General

JFK Federal Building, Room 2225

15 New Sudbury Street
Boston, MA 02203

July 18, 2007

Via Federal Express

Eddie I, Davis, Ph.D.

Interim President

Texas A&M University

College Station, TX 77843-1112

Dear Dr. Davis:

This letter is to advise you that the Office of Inspector General (O1G) for the U S,
Department of Health and Human Services (HHS) has preliminary determined that
Texas A&M University (TAMU) may be lable for civil money penalties and other
sanctions under Part 73 of Title 42 of the Code of Federal Regulations for numerous
violations of these regulations. This determination is based on information the OIG
has received from the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC), Division of
Select Agents-and Toxins (DSAT) following a CDC site visit of TAMU on April 16
through 18, 2007.

The purpose of CDC"., site visit was to (1) review the events surrounding the
occupational exposure to the select agent or toxin, Brucella, that occurred on
February 9, 2006 in Room _‘of Building  and assess the measures implemented
to prevent other such incidents; (2) assess measures implemented by TAMU to
protect the staff and public from exposure to pathogenic microorganisms; and (3) to
otherwise evaluate your entity’s compliance with the select agent regulations. See
Enclosure 1 at page 1.

Part 73 of Title 42 of the Code of Federal Regulations sets forth requirements
regarding the possession, use, and transfer of select agents and toxins. 42 C.F.R. §
73.2. Those regulations, in part, state and/or require the following.

» A certificate of registration may be amended to reflect changes in
circumstances (e.g., changes in the activities involving select agents or foxins,
or the addition or removal of select agents or toxins) prior to any change, the
Responsible Official must apply for an amendment to a certificate of
registration by submitting the relevant page(s) of the registration application.
42 C.F.R. § 73.7(h)}(1).
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An individual or entity required to register under this part must designate an
individual to be the Responsible Official. The Responsible Official must: (1)
be approved by the HHS Secretary or Administrator, Animal and Plant Health
Inspection Service (APHIS) following a security risk assessment by the
Attorney General of the United States, (2) be familiar with the requirements of

this part, (3) have authority and responsibility to act on behalf of the entity, (4)

ensure compliance with the requirements of this part, and (5) ensure that
annual inspections are conducted for each laboratory where select agents or
toxins are stored or used in order to determine compliance with the
requirements of this part. The results of each inspection must be documented,
and any deficiencies identified during an inspection must be cotrected. 42
C.FR. § 73.9(a).

An individual or entity required to register under this part may not provide an
individual access to a select agent or toxin, and an individual may net access a
select agent or toxin, unless the individual is approved by the HHS Secretary
or the Administrator, APHIS following a security risk assessment by the
Attorney General of the United States. 42 C.F.R. § 73.10(a).

Each individual with access to select agents or toxins must have the
appropriate education, training, and/or experience to handle or use such agents
or toxins. 42 C.F.R. § 73.10(c).

An individual or entity must adhere to the following security requirements

to allow access only to individuals with access approval from the HHS
Secretary or Administrator, APHIS, and require that individuals with access
approval from the HHS Secretary or Administrator, APHIS immediately report
to the Responsible Official, any release of a select agent or toxin. 42 CFR.

§§ 73.11(d)(1) and (@{7Gv).

An individual or entity required to register under this part must develop and
implement a written biosafety plan that is commensurate with the risk of the
agent or toxin, given its intended use. 42 C.F.R. § 73.12(a).

The biosafety and containment procedures must be sufficient to contain the
select agent or toxin (e.g., physical structure and features of the entity, and
operational and procedural safeguards). 42 C.F.R. § 73.12(b).

An individual or entity required to register under this part must provide
information and training on biosafety and security to each individual with
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access approval from the HHS Secretary or Administrator before he/she has
such access. In addition, an individual or entity must provide information and
training on biosafety and security to each individual not approved for access
from the HHS Secretary or Administrator before he/she works in or visits
areas where select agents or toxins are handled and stored (e.g., laboratories,
growth chambers, animal rooms, green houses, storage areas, etc.). The
training must address the particular needs of the individual, the work they will
do, and the risks posed by the select agents or toxins. 42 CF.R. § 73.15(a).

e An individual or entity required to register under this part must maintain
complete records relating to the activities covered by this part. Such records
must include: information about all entrees into areas containing select agents
or toxins, including the name of the individual, name of the escort (if
applicable), and date and time of entry. 42 C.F.R. § 73.17(ay(4).

» Upon discovery of a release of an agent or toxin causing occupational
exposure or release of a select agent or toxin outside of the primary barriers of
the biocontainment area, an individual or entity must immediately notify CDC
or APHIS. 42 C.F.R. § 73.19(b).

As stated in detail in the CDC Inspectors’ Observations, TAMU appears to have
violated the above provisions of the select agent regulations. See Enclosure 1 at
pages 4-12. Under 42 C.F.R. § 73.21, the OIG is authorized to impose civil money
penalties of up to $250,000 against an individual and up to $500,000 against any
other person, including any entity, that is in violation of any of the requirements
found in Part 73 of Title 42 of the Code of Federal Regulations. 42 C.F.R. §
1003.103(1).

We are writing to extend to you the opportunity to resolve this matter before the
initiation of formal administrative proceedings. If you wish to submit information
relevant to the OIG’s preliminary findings, or if you are interested in proposing an
offer of settlement, please do so by August 18, 2007.

Finally, I want to inform you that Special Agent Les Hollie of the OIG’s Office of
Investigations and I will be joining the CDC inspectors on their site visit to TAMU
next Monday and Tuesday, July 23 and 24. We request to interview individuals with
knowledge of TAMU’s select agents and toxins program and the incidents described
in Enclosure 1. Prior to this site visit, CDC will be sending you a list of the
individuals that the OIG requests to interview.
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If you have any questions, you can reach me by telephone at (617) 565-1053 or by e-
mail at john.obrien@oig.hhs.gov. Thank you for your attention to this matter.

Sincerely,

f o DR

John W. O’Brien
Senior Counsel

cc:

Scott A, Kelly

Deputy General Counsel

The Texas A&M University System
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—‘{ DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES Public Health Service

G C a ' Centers for Disease Control
""‘;h and Prevention {CDC)
Atlanta GA 30333

May 4, 2007
* Richard Ewing, Responsible Official
Texas A& M University (Registration #C20060605-0489)
1112 TAMU
Colege Station, TX 77843-1112
FAX:(979)845-1855

Subject: Texas A& M University: Report of Site Visit; Request for Additional Information

On April 11, 2007, the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC), Division of Select Agents and
Toxins (DSAT) received the APHIS/CDC Form 3 (Report of Thefi, Loss, or Release of Select Agents and
Toxins) from Texas A&M University (TAMU) reporting the occupational exposure to Brucefla on February
9, 2006 that resulted in infection of a laboratory worker.

During the period April 16, 2007 through April 18, 2007, the following representatives from the CDC visited
TAMU located at 1112 TAMU, College Station, TX 77843:

Diane Martin, Lead Inspector
Richard Henkel, Biosafety Manager
Melissa Resnick, Epidemic Intelligence Service Officer

Individuals from TAMU present during the site visit included:

Richard Ewing, Vice President (VP) of Research, Responsible Official
Angelia Raines, Dir-Office of Research Compliance, alternate Responsible Official
John Salsman, Director, Environmental Health and Safety Department (EHSD)
Brent Mattox, Biosafety Officer, EHSD, alternate Responsible Official

Chris Meyer, Asst. VP, Safety & Security

Tiffany Agnew, Environmental Biosafety Program Coordinator

Thomas Ficht, Professor, Principal Investigator

L.G. Adams, Associate Dean, Principal Investigator

Angela Arenas, Graduate Student

Christine McFarland, Research Associate

Jianwu Pei, Assistant Research Scientist

Linda Clark, Assistant Executive Director, Scott & White Clinic

Jack Crouch, Occupational Medicine Supervisor, Scott & White Clinic
Melissa Kahi-McDonagh, Postdoctoral Research Fellow

The purpose of the site visit was to (1) review the events surrounding the occupational exposure to Brucella
that occurred .on February 9, 2006 in Room of Building: and assess the measures implemented to
prevent other such incidents; (2) assess measures implemented by TAMU to protect the staff and public from
exposure to pathogenic microorganisms; and (3) and to otherwise evaluate your entity’s compliance with the
select agent regulations (7 C.F.R. part 331, 9 C.F.R. part 121, 42 C.F.R. part 73).

) i Enclosure 1
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Overview of the incident:

The incident occurred in Building Roeom on the TAMU main campus. A free-standing
aerosolization chamber is located in this room. At the time of the incident, the room was shared by three
research groups, involving work with Mycebacterium, Coxiella burnétii, Brucella melitensis, Brucella suis,
and Brucefla abortus. The room is not currently authorized by DSAT for the performance of aerosolization
experiments with Brucella melitensis, Brucella suis, and Brucella abortus. Based on conversations with the
laboratory warkers present during the February 9, 2006 occupational exposure, | La
researcher from the Mycobacterium group who freqiiently uses the chamber, was asked to assist Mehssa
Kahl-McDenagh and her fellow Brucella researchers with loading and operation of the chamber. *

“has not received select agent access approval from the DSAT. _ did not receive
training to perform aerosolization experiments with Brucella melitensis, Bruceila suis, and Brucella abortus.
After ‘completed the aerosolization experiments with Brucella melitensis and Brucella abortus,
she cleaned the aerosolization chamber with disinfectant. This cleaning {echmque caused.
head and arm to enter into the interior of the chamber most likely resulted in | occupational
exposure to either Brucella melitensis or Brucella abortus. According to laboratorians present during the -
experiments, the aerosol chamber was not d;smfected between the aerosolization experiments with Brucella

melitensis and Brucella abortus,

According to a log kept by she first felt ill on March 25, 2006. On April 12, 2006, she
informed Principal Investigator (PI) Dr. Tom Ficht that she had been diagnosed with.brucellosis, with
isolation of Brucella melitensis on April 16, 2006 by the Texas State Public Health Laboratory. She also filed
a workman’s compensation claim with Texas A& M University. returned to-work on April

24, 2006. On April 21, 2006, PI Ficht sent an e-mail (sec Attachment #2) to alternate Responsible Official
Brent Matiox and alternative Responsible Official Angelia Raines, and the IBSP Coordinator, Tiffany Agnew,
to notify them of the occupational exposure that resulted in being diagnosed with
brucelosis.

Site visit: -

On the moraing of April 16, 2007, CDC representatives met with the Responsible Official, Dr. Richard Ewing
and alternate Responsible Official Angelia Raines. The CDC representatives requested the following:

¢ All documents requested by DSAT in a fax sent to TAMU on April 13, 2007 (see Attachment #3).

s  All records related to the reported occupational exposure including any updates to training, security
plan, incident response plan, and the biosafety plan as a result of the incident, incident/corrective
action report, access logs to the area and animal health records,

s Access to individuals involved with the reported February 9, 2006 occupational exposure to conduct

interviews. _
= Access to inspect room  “in building - ~~where the reported occupational exposure had oceurred.

The CDC representatives interviewed the following individuals:
Richard Ewing, Vice President of Research, Responsible Official
Angelia Raines, Dir-Office of Research Compliance, alternate Responsible Official
Brent Mattox, Biological Safety Officer, Environmental Health and Safety (EHS)
John Salsman, Director, EHS
Thomas Ficht, Principal Investigator

~ Angela Arenas, Graduate Student
Jiamwu Pei, Assistant Research Scientist
Linda Clark, Assistant Executive Director, Scott & White Chinic
Jack Crouch, Occupational Medicine Supervisor, Scott & White Clinic
Melissa Kahl-McDonagh, Postdoctoral Research
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Enclosed as attachment | to this letter please find a list of observations and accompanying requests for
supplemental information concemmg the occupational exposure to Brucella that occurred-on February 9,
2006 in Room - of Building " at TAMU. The DSAT should receive the supplemental information by
close of business May 18, 2007.

The DSAT inspects each registered facility to ensure that it meets the appropriate safety and security
standards, as well as record-keeping requirements, found in 42 CFR Part 73 (“Possession, Use and Transfer of
Select Agents and Toxins; Final Rule™). Please be advised that the HHS Secretary may revoke a certificate of
registration if the entity fails to comply with the provisions of 42 CFR Part 73 (See 42 C.F.R. § 73. 3). On
April 20, 2007, the DSAT faxed TAMU the “Cease and Desist Order” to immediately cease and desist from:

¢ The use of Room Building  Texas A&M University, for any and all manipulations and
storage of Brucella abortis, Brucella melitensis, and Brucella suis until such time as a request for the
amendment of the Texas A&M University’s certificate of registration has been properly submitted by
the Texas A&M University and approved by the Division of Select Agents and Toxins (DSAT),
Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) in accordance with 42 C.F.R. part 73,

* The experimental acrosolization of any select agent or toxin performed at the Texas A&M University.

* Allowing access to select agents and toxins by any individual who has not been approved for such
access by the DSAT following a security risk assessment by the Attorney General of the United
States.

The DSAT will notify TAMU of any changes to this “cease and desist order” status.

Should you have further questions concerning this.correspondence or the requirements of 42 CFR 73, please
refer to our web site at http:#www.cdc.gov/od/sap/ or contact Diane Martin, Lead Inspector with this office
by mail at: Division of Select Agents and Toxins, 1600 Clifton Road, MS A-46, Atlanta, GA 30333, or by
phont at (404) 718-2031, or fax at (404) 718-2096.

Sincerel

‘Robbin Weyant, PhD, @APT, USPHS

Dhrector

Division of Select Agents and Toxins
Coordinating Office of Terrorism Preparedness and
Emergency Response

Enclosu%e 1
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Observations noted on April 16, 2007 through April 18, 2007 at TAMU (Page numbers from the BMBL
or 42 CFR Part 73 specifying each requirement are given in parentheses).

Observations:

L. Anindividaal or entity required to register under this part must maintain complete records relating
to the activities covered by this part. Such records must include: Information about all entries into
areas containing select agents or toxins, including the name of the individual, name of the escort
(if applicable), and date and t_ime of entry {42 CFR § 73.17(a)(4}].

Observatmn At the time of the inspection, there was no record of access t¢ located in
~ oeing kept during the time the room was used for work with select agents.

Reguest for supplemental information: Please provide an explanation as to why entries into
were not being recorded as required under §73.17 (Records) and how your entity will comply
with all the requirements of §73.17.

2. A certificate of registration may be amended to reflect changes in circumstances (e.g., changes in
the activities involving any select ugents or toxins, or the addition or removal of select agents or
toxins)(1) Prior to any change, the Respousible Official must apply for an amendment to a
certificate of registration by submitting the relevant page(s) of the registration application. [42
CFR § 73. 7{h)(1)}.

Observation: Documentation provided to the CDC Inspectors indicated twelve aerosol experiments
with Brucella abortus and Brucella melitensis had been performed using the aeroso! chamber located
in located in since October of 2005, To date, DSAT has not received-or
approved an amendment to update your certificate of registration to include these activities for

~ 1n addition, your entity was notified on June 7, 2006 {see Amendment #4) that prior to any
changes in the activities involving select agents, the entity’s certificate of registration must be
amended to include this work with select agents such as acrosolization experiments and that this
amendment must be approved by DSAT prior to any work being petformed.

Request for supplemental information: Please explain why your entity failed to submit an

amendment and receive approval from DSAT prior to the twelve aerosol experiments with Brucella

abortus and Brucella melitensis that had been performed using the aeroso] chamber located in
since October of 2005;

3. Anindividual or entity required to register under this part may net provide an individual access 1o
a.select agent or toxin, and an individual may not access a select agent or toxin, unless the
individual is approved by the HHS Secretary or Administrator, following a secumy risk
assessment by the Attorney General [42 CFR § 73.10{a)].

Observation: On February 9, 2006. ‘ ., who has not received access approval
from the DSAT, performed aerosolization experiments with Brucelt‘a melitensis and Brucella abortus.
After . completed the aerosolization experiments with Brucella melitensis and Brucella
abortus, she cleaned the aerosolization chamber by wiping down the rear inside of the chamber with
disinfectant. This cleaning technique caused head and arm {o enter into the interior
of the chamber, most likely resulting i in’ ' occupational exposure to either Brucella

melitensis or Brucella abortus.

Request for supplemental information: P!ease provide an explanation regarding this apparent
allowance of unauthorized access to select agents including: (1) Has your enttty allowed oth

Enclosure }
Page 4 of 22
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unauthorized access to select agents to other individuals and who are the individuals who had
unauthorized access to select agents, along with dates, times, and select agents associated with other
incidents of unauthorized access; (2) If your entity has been allowing unauthorized access to select
agents besides this incident, what immediate actions have you taken to ensure that these individuals
no longer have access; (3) What is your entity’s plan of action to assure prevention of simifar events
from occurring; and, (4) During the unauthorized access, how was the select agent safeguarded
against theft, loss, or release (see 42 C.F. R. § 73.11(a)) during this allowance of unauthorized access
to select agents.

4. Euach individual with access to select agents or toxins must have the appropriate education,
training, and/or experience to handle or use such agents or toxins [42 CFR § 73.10(c)}. An
individual or entity required to register under this part must provide information and training on
biosafety and security to each individual with access approval from the HHS Secretary or
Administrator before he/she has such access. In addition, an individual or entity must provide
information and training on biosafety and security to each individual not approved for access from
the HHS Secretary or Administrator before he/she works in or visits areas where select agents or
toxins are handled or stored (e.g., laboratories, growth chambers, animal rooms, greenifiouses,
storage areas, etc.). The training must address the particular needs of the individual, the work they
will do, and the risks posed by the select agenis or toxins. [42 CFR 73.15(a)}]

QObservation: On February 9, 2006, performed aerosolization experiments
with Brucella melitensis and Brucella abortus. According to’ - she-did not receive

training or have any experience in handling Brucella melitensis, Brucella abortus ot Brucella suis.

Request for supplemental information; Please provide an explanation why did not

receive the appropriate training prior to her work with select agents. Based on this incident, please
describe your entity’s plan of action to assure that all individuals who work or visit areas where select
agents o toxins are handled or stored will be provided appropriate training.

5. An individual or entity may not conduct a restricted experiment with a HHS select agent or toxin
unless approved by and conducted in accordance with any conditions prescribed by the HHS -
Secretary. In addition, an individual or entity may not conduct a restricted experiment with an
overlap select agent or toxin unless approved by and conducted in accordance with any conditions
prescribed by the HHS Secretary, after consultation with Administrator. Restricted experiments:
Experiments utilizing recombinant DNA that involve the deliberate transfer of a drug resistance
trait to select agents that are not known to acquire the trait naturally, if such acquisition could
compromise the use of the drug to control disease agents in humans, veterinary medicine, or
agriculture [42 CFR-§73.13 (a),(b)(1)].

Observation: According to laboratery personnel interviewed by the CDC Inspectors, Dr. Ficht had
conducted restricted experiments utilizing recombinant DNA that involve the deliberate transfer of a
drug resistance trait to select agents that are not known to acquire the trait naturally, if such '
acquisition could compromise the use of the drug to control disease agents in humans, veterinary
medicine, or agriculture (see 42 C.F.R. § 73.13(b)(1)). Specifically, experiments conducted by Dr,
Ficht that involved the introduction of plasmids containing kanamycin and chloramphenicol
resistance cassettes used as selectable markers in Brucella melitensis, Brucella abortus-and Brucella
suis. Please note that during the February 2005 inspection of your entity, the inspectors identified
that P1 Tsolis’s standard operating procedures indicated restricted experiments being conducted and
that this work was not reflected on the PI's statement of work for your entity’s certification of
registration. On April 11, 2005, you responded that “PI Tsolis’ recombinant antibiotic resistance
work has ceased and is not currently planned (see Attachment #5). If this type of work is considered
in the future, an amendment to update the current registration for PI Tsolis will be submitted fo the -

Enclosure 1
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Request for supplemental information: Please provide a detailed description of all select agent
work being conducted by Pls at your entity; describe why any restricted experiments have been
performed at TAMU without approval from DSAT, and what steps the entity will take to prevent
reoceurrence of a restricted experiment being conducted without approval from the DSAT. Also,
please provide a list of all select agent strains currently possessed by TAMU in which antibiotic
resistance markers have been introduced using recombinant DNA techniques. In addition, please
include a copy of any Institutional Biosafety Committee (IBC) minutes for all projects that invalve
select agents and toxins including a list of the IBC members, date the project was approved, and the
Justification for this approval. '

6. Anindividual or entity must adhere to the Jollowing security requirements or implement measures
to achieve an equivalemt or greater level of security: Allow access only to individuals with access
approval from the HHS Secretary or Administrator {42 CFR §73.11 ()]

Observation: On February 9, 2006, who has not received access approval
from the DSAT, performed aerosolization experiments with Brucella melitensis and Brucella abortus.
After completed the aerosolization-experiments with Brucella melitensis and Brucella
abortus, she cleaned the asrosolization chamber by wiping down the rear inside of the chamber with
disinfectant. This cleaning technique caused - head and arm to enter into the interior
of the chamber, most likely resulting in - . occupational exposure to either Bricella

melitensis or Brucella abortus.

Request for supplemental information: As your entity’s security plan states in section C (Personnel
Security) that “only DOJ authorized persons will have access to select agents,” please provide an
explanation regarding this apparent atlowance of unauthorized access to select agents even though
this practice deviates from the current policy outlined in your security plan.
4

1. Anindividual or entity required to register under this part must develop and implement a written
biosafety plan that is commensurate with the risk of the agent or toxin, giver its intended use. {42
CFR §73.12].Ventilation should be provided in accordance with criteria from the Guide for Care
and Use of Laboratory Animals. A ducted exhaust air ventilation sysiem is provided. This system
creates directional airflow whick draws air into the laboratory from “clean” areas toward
“contaminated” areas. The exhaust air is not recirculated 1o any other area of the building,
Filtration and other treatments of the exhaust air may not be required, but should bé considered
based on site requirements, and specific agent manipulations and use conditions. The exhaust
must be dispersed away from occupied areas and air intakes, or the exhaust must be HEPA-
Siltered. Personnel must verify that the direction of the airflow (into the animal areas) is proper. It
is recommended that a visual monitoring device that indicates and confirms directional inward
airflow be provided at the animal room entry. Consideration should be given to instafling an
HVAC control system to preveni sustained positive pressurization of the animal spaces. Audible
alarms should be considered to notify pérsonnel of HVAC system failure [Biosafety in
Microbinlogical and Biomedical Laboratories (BMBL): DS}.

Observation: Forroom = scated in building the CDC Inspectors were unable to verify that
the room had proper directional airflow at the time of the inspection because the visual monitoring
system used to confirm directional airflow for the room was not functioning properly,

Request for supplemental information: As the CDC Inspectors were not able to confirm that the
room had directional airflow, please provide documentation that room has a functional visual
monitoring device and that the directional airflow is from “clean” area toward “contaminated” area.

Enclosure 1
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8. An individual or entity required to register under this part must develop and implement a writlen
biosafety plan that is commensurate with the risk of the agent or toxin, given its intended use. [42
CFR §73.12]. The completed Biosafety Level 3 facility design and operational procedures must be
decumented. The facility must be tested for verification that the design and operational parameters
have been met prior to operation. Facilities should be reverified at least annually against these
procedures as modified by operational experience [BMBL: D14},

Observation: The entity did not provide documentation for room = located in building that
annual verification was performed to ensure that the laboratory meets the design and operational
parameters.

Request for supplemental information: Please provide this documentation,

9. An individual or entity required to register under this part must develop and implement a written
biosafety plan that is commensurate with the risk of the agent or toxin, given its intended use. {42
CFR §73.12]. Equipment and work surfaces in the room are routinely decontaminated with an
effective disinfectant after work with the infectious agent, and especially after overt spills, splashes,
or other contamination by infectious materials [BMBL: A7].

Observation: During the inspection of the aerosol chamber, the CDC Inspectors noted that the
interior and exterior of the chamber contained a significant amount of animal hair.

Request for supplemental information: Please verify standard operating procedures that provide
documentation that the chamber is routinely decontaminated with an effective disinfectant after work
with the infectious agent to ensure removal of all contaminated materials, including hair and animal
wagte and explain if there was a deviation in standard protocels, what steps you will take to ensure
that standard protocols are followed.

10. An.individual or entity required to register under this part must develop and implement g written
biosafety plan that is commensurate with the risk of the agent or toxin, given its intended use, [42
CFR§ 73.12]. Continuous flow centrgfuges or other equipment that may produce aerosols are
contained in devices that exhaust air through HEPA filters before discharge into the laboratory,
These HEPA systers are tested af least annually. Alternatively, the exhaust from such equipmient
may be vented to the outside if it dispersed away from occupied areas and air intakes {BMBL: D11}

Observation: According to documentation provided to the CDC Inspectors, the HEPA systems of the
acrosol chamber located in room _ are not routinely verified or tested to ensure that the HEPA
filters provide adequate protection. Dr. David McMurray provided documentation to the CDC
Inspectors that the routine maintenance of the Madison Aerosol Chamber indicated that testing of the
HEPA system is not necessary.

Request for supplemental information: Please provide documentation from the manufacturer
regarding HEPA system maintenance to support this statement.

1. An individual or entity required to register under this part must develop and implement a written
biosafety plan that is commensurate with the risk of the agent or toxin, given its intended use. [42
CFR §73.12). Al manipulations of infectious materials, necropsy of infected animals, harvesting
of tissues or fluids from infected animals or embryonate eggs, etc. are conducted in a Class I or
Class I bivtogical safety cabinet {fBMBL: C5]

Observation: The CDC Inspectors noted that the design of the chamber is such that afier the aerosol
challenge, the nebulization unit containing infectious material must be disassembled in the laboratory

Enclosure 1
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12.

13,

14.

and not in the biosafety cabinet.

Request for supplemental information: Please provide documentation that safety procedures are
established and followed to minimize the risk for laboratorians disassembling the nebulization unit
comtaining infectious material.

The biosafety and containment procedures must be sufficient to contain the select agent or toxin
fe.g., physical structure and features of the entily, and operational and procedural safeguards {42
CFR § 73.12{B)]).

Observation: Documentation provided tothe CDC Inspectors indicated twelve aerosol experiments
with Brucella abortus and Brucella melitensis had been performed using the aeroso! chamber located
inroom  slocated in building singe October of 2005, The CD(C Inspectors were informed that
the established biosafety protocols for work with Mycobacterium were used for the aerosol
experiments with Brucello melitensis and Brucella abortus.

Request for supplemental information: Please provide documentation of (1) the dated risk
assessment that was performed.that indicated the biosafety procedures for work with Mycobacterium
was sufficient to be used for the aercsol experiments with Brucella melitensis anid Brucella abortus;
(2) risk assessments for all select agent work being conducted by Pls at your entity to ensure that the
biosafety and containment procedures are sufficient to contain the select agent or toxin, and (3) the
procedures. of how risk assessments are conducted to ensure that the biosafety and containment
procedures are sufficient to contain the select agent or toxin.

An individual orentity required to register under this part must develop and implement a written
bigsafety plan that is commensurate with the risk of the agent or toxin, given its intended use. [42
CFR §73.12]. When a procedure or process cannot be conducted within a biological safety
tabinet, then appropriate combinations of personal protective equipment {e.g. respirators, face
shields) and physical containment devices are used [BMBL: C5]

Observation: On February 9, 2006, aerosolization experiments were performed with Brucella
melitensis and Brucella abortus. According to interviews with the laboratorians present during these
experiments, the CDC Inspectors were told that the personal protective equipment being used
consisted of an N-95 respirator, safety glasses with splash guards, tyvek suits and gloves. Based on
the CDC Inspectors questions to the laboratorians about quantitative or qualitative fit testing for the
N-95 respirators, the CDC Inspectors determined that none of these individuals had been fit tested
with the N-95 respirators. In addition, the CDC Inspectors received documentation that annual
respirator fit testing is not performed for all laboratory workers that use N-95 respirators.

Request for supplemental information: Please provide an explanation why laboratory workers are
not tested to ensure that the N-95 respirator being used provides adequate respiratory protection.

- Ohservation: The “Operating Procedures for the

cument dated 2/22/07 that was provided to the CDC Inspectors states that N-935
respirators are used for agrosol studies. This contradicts the undated risk assessment document that

“was provided to the CDC Inspectors which states that powered air purifying respirators should be

used.

Request for supplemental information: Please explain this discrepancy.

An individual or entity required to register under this part must develop and implement a written
biosafety plan that is commensurate with the risk of the agent or toxin, given its intended use. [42

Enclosure 1
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16.

CFR §73.12]. Laboratory and support personnel receive appropriate training on the potential
hazards associated with the work involved, the necessary precautions are incorporated into
standard opergting procedures. Personnel are advised of special hazards and are required to read
and follow instructions on practices and procedures [BMBL; B7}

Observation: The entity did not provide documentation that individuals operating the aerosel
chamber had received training to ensure safety procedures were followed during operation-of the
charnber for the twelve aerosol experiments with Brucella abortus and Brucella melitensis that had
been performed using the aerosol chamber located in room located in building  .:since October
of 2005. The entity did not provide documentation that individuals operating the aerosol chamber had
received training to ensure safety procedures were followed during operation of the chamber,

Request for supplemental information: Please provide documentation that training was conducted

including the date of the training, a description of the training provided, and the means used to verify
that the employee understood the training.

An individuat or entity required to register under this part must develop and implement a.written
biosafety plan that is commensurate with the risk of the agent or toxin, given its intended wse. [42
CFR §73.12]. Aside from the standard policies, procedures, and protocols for emergency
situations established by the focility director, appropriate speciai policies and procedures should be
developed as needed and approved by the Institutional Animal Care and Use Conirittee JACUC)
and the Institutional Biosafety Commitiee (IBC) [BMBL: Al}

Request for supplemental information; Please provide documentation that the animal work that
had been performed using the aerosol chamber located in room?™ slocated in building’  :since
October of 2005 was approved by the Institutional Biosafety Committee (IBC) of TAMU. Please
provide a copy of any 1BC minutes approving the project including a list of the IBC members, date
the project was approved, the justification for this approval, and the date(s) of the approval. |

Upon discovery of a release of an agent or toxin causing oceupational exposure or release of a
select agent or toxin outside of the primary barriers of the biocomtainment area, an individual or
entity must immediately notify CDC or APHIS {42 CFR §73.19 (b)]. An Individual or entity must
adhere to the following security requirements or implement measures to achieve an equivalent or
greater level of security: Require that individuals with access approval from the HHS Secretary or
Administrator immediately report any of the following to the Responsible Official, any release of a
select agent or toxin [42 CFR §73.11 (d)(7)(iv}}.

Ohservation: Based on documentation provided to the CDC Inspectors, PI Ficht sent an e-mail on
April 21, 2006 to alternate Responsible Official Brent Mattox and alternate Responsible Official
Angelia Raines that notified themof occupational exXposurs. :

Request for supplemental information; Please explain why the alternate Responsible Officials
failed to immediately report the occupational exposure to the DSAT as required by 42 CFR §73.19
th).

Request for supplemental information: Please provide a summary of events that occurred when this

-email was received by the alternate Responsible Official who was acting on behalf of the Responsible

Official including the follow up review that was conducted as a result of this e-mail report. Please
also explain why the alternate Responsible Official who was acting on behalf of the Responsibie
Official did not follow the security protocols outlined in the “TAMU Facilities and Research
Laboratories with Select Agents” security plan.

Enclosure 1
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17. An individual or entity required to register under this part must develop and implement a written
biosafety plan that is commensurate with the risk of the agent or toxin, given its intended use. [42
CFR §73.12].An appropriate medical surveillance program is in place, All personnel receive
appropriate inmunizations or tests for the agents handled or potentially present. When
appropriate, @ serum surveillance system should be implemented. In general, persons who may be
at increased risk of acquiring infection, or for whom infection might have serious consequences,
are not allowed in the amimal fucility unless special procedures can eliminate the extra risk.
Assessment should be made by the Occupational Health Physician [BMBL: A3].

Observation: On Febrouary 9, 2006, . aerosolization experiments
with Brucella melitensis and Brucella abortus. After “completed the aerosolization

ﬁxperlments with Brucella melitensis and Brucella abortus, she cleaned the aerosolization chamber
bv wipingdown the rear inside of the chamber with disinfectant. This cleaning technique caused
head and arm to enter into the interior of the chamber and most likely resulted in

_ soccupational exposure to either Brucella melitensis or Brucella abortus. Based on
information provided by” -to the CDC Inspectors, no follow up was conducted by

TAMU following her occupational exposure even though she informed P1 Ficht on-April 12, 2006

that she had been diagnosed with brucetlosis,

Request for supplemental information: Please describe the medical surveillance system in place at
your entity including the post-exposure protocols and explain why your entity failed to follow up
regarding " ~ soccupational exposure.

I8. Establish a protocal for intra-entity transfers under the supervision of an individual with access
“approval from the HHS Secretary or Administrdtor, including chain-gf-custedy documents and
pmvis‘ionsfar safeguarding against theft, loss, or release [42CFR § 73.9(a)}.

Observation: Based ‘on documentation provided to the CDC Inspectors, the preparation of test
samples for the twelve aerosol experiments with Brucella abortus and Brucella melitensis that had
been performed using the aerosel chamber located in room  located of building - since October
of 2005, was completed in laboratory room’ locatedin bu:ldmg

Requiest for supplemental mformahan‘ Please provide the intra-entity transfer documentation that
ensures that a security protoco] was in place when these transfers oecurred from laboratory reom”

(building yloroom’  _building

19. Upon discovery of a release of an agent or foxin causing occupational exposiere or release of a
select agent or toxin outside of the primary barriers of the biocontainment area, an individual or
entity must immediately notify CDC or APHIS [42 CFR §73.19 (b)].

Observation: Upon review of clinic records, there were laboraterians identified with elevated titers
to Coxiella burnetii, the causative agent of Q-fever. On April 24, 2007, Angelia Raines submitted
APHIS/CDC Form 3 to report the possible occupational exposure to Coxiella burnetii,

Request for supplemental information: Please provide accupational heaith records including the
baseline titers pertaining to the exposed individuals that are related to this incident. In addition,
please provide the records for John Park, Gordon Draper, Laura Quinlivan, Wilheimina Boehout,
Joshua Hill, Katia Mertens, Kasi Russel-Lodrigue, Jared Barker and James Samuel.

Reguest for supplemental information; Please provide a copy of the medical surveillance plan and
describe the follow up that was conducted based on the plan as a result of the incident.

Enclosure 1
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Reguest for supplemental information: Please describe corrective measures that have been
implemented in order to prevent future incidents.

Request for supplemental information: Please describe any training that has been conducted as a
result of this incident. Please provide documentation that training was conducted including the date
of the training, a description of the trairiing provided, and the means used to verify that the emplovee
understood the training,.

Request for supplemental information: Please explain how your incident response and biosafety
plans have been modified as a result of this incident.

20. Upon discovery of a theft or loss of a select agent or toxin, an individual or entity must immediately
notify CDC or APHIS {42 CFR §73.19 (w)]. :

Observation: On January 29, 2006, Angelia Raines, the alternate Responsible Official reported a
mouse that was infected with Coxiella burnetii was discovered missing on 12/21/06, Based on the
response from Ms, Raines on 1/18/07, the DSAT has the following additional questions:

Request forsupplemental information: Please explain how “Scot Holster” is listed on the “Facility
Access Log” for Room  {Building _, when he is not listed as on the “Personnel who are have
approved access to Lab (1/19/07).”

Request for supplemental information: Please provide a detailed description of the followup

conducted by your entity that explains your determination that your investigation had been “closed”
because “the missing mouse was most fikely included in the autoclaved bedding material and
disposed.” Please provide any logs or documentations that will suppert your determination. Since
you reported the incident to local authorities (case #12-06-5068), please provide results of their
fnvestigation. '

Reguest for supplemental information; Please explain how the inventory records are reconciled as
indicated on Section 5B of your approved application. Please provide a detailed description and
supporting documents of how the inventories were verified during the report of the loss to ensure
select agents were safeguarded against theft, loss, or release. '

Request for supplemental information: Please explain what security measures are in place at your
entity to ensure select agents were safeguarded against theft, loss, or release.

Request for supplemental information: Please describe how your security and incident response
plans have been reviewed and revised (if needed) as a result of your investigation to this report of
loss.

Request for supplemental information: Please provide documentation regarding the training that
was tonducted in follow up to this incident including the date of the training, a description of the
training provided, and the means used to verify that the employee understood the training.

2L An individual or entity required to register under this part must designate an individual to be the
Respansible Official. The Responsible Official must: (1) Be approved by the HHS Secretary or
Administrator following a security risk assessment by the Attorney General, (2) Be familiar with
the requirements of this part, (3) Have authority and responsibility 1o act on behalf of the entity, (4)
Ensure compliance with the requirements of this part [42 CFR § 73.9(a}]).

‘Request for supplemental information: Based on the above observations noted during the inspection,

Enclosure 1
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please provide documentation that the Responsible Official is fam‘iliar and ensures compliance \fwth tha?
‘requirements of the select agent regulations including documentation of‘the mos? re:;t":nt annual inspection
conducted for each laboratory and assurances that no select agent or toxin work is being performed
without the proper oversight,

i
F
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From: Tom Ficht <thicht@cvm.tamu. edu>
To: "Matlox, Brent &7 <bsmattox@tamu.edu>, Angelia Raines
%Raines@vpmaﬂ.tamu.edu:, Tiffany Agnew <tmagnew@tamu.edu>

Date: 4/21/2006 1:28:18 PM

Subject: FW: Workmen's Compensation

> Brent T
>

> I wanted to let you know that +has been diagnosed with

> brucellosis, - <apparently contracted the disease during an

> experimental challenge at CLARR (CMP) on the ninth of February 2006. At that
> time~ zalong with Dr, McMurray wers training us In the use of the

- > Madison chamber for agrosol inoculations,
. :
> . 7has heen home sick for several weeks being treated by her. parsonat
> physician and was only recertly diagnosed, -heard about this fast week
> {Man.or Tuss) and instructed other personne! present at that challenge to
> have an an immediate blood draw for testing. Tha resuils shauld be
> available in another wesk or b,
>
> We donat know.the exact cause of / exposuse, aithough we assume
> it may have ocourred as a result of cisaning oul the WMadison chamber atter
> an aerosal run, in the future we pian to flush the chamber with

> in the initial asrosol trials we relied op the experience of the TR
> reésearchers for the level of precaution typically employed in such
> experiments, itis suspected ' _
> that a conjunctival route of infection is responsibie for.
© > infection, perhaps as a result of manuglly cleaning the. Madison chambar,
> 1t is.my fault for not recognizing the differences batween Brucalla and
> Mysobactaria in regard to routes of infection,
- ,

~ > An isolation was made from a blood culture by _ i physician and

> sent to TDH for confirmation. 1t would be heipful it EHSD coutd reguested
> a sample of this isolate for culture confirmation here.

-

>
> .
> Thomas A. Ficht, Ph.D,

> Professor

> Veterinary Pathobiology
>Texas A&M University

> 4467 TAML

> College Station, TX 77843-4467
> 979-845.4118 ph )
> 979-862-1088 fax

Attachment §2
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—/g DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES Public Health Service
"'«Q ' ' Centers for Disease Cantrol
' and Prevention (CDC)
Atlanta GA 30333

April 13, 2007

Richard Ewing, Responsible Official

Texas A& M University (Registration #C20060605-0489)
1500 Research Parkway, Suite B150, TAMU 1186
College Station, TX 77843-1183

Fax: (979) 862-3176

Subject: 42 C.F.R. § 73.19 (Notification of theft, loss, or release)
‘Dear Dr. Ewing:

This is to acknowledge the receipt of the APHIS/CDC Form 3 {Report of Theft, Loss, or Release of
Select Agents and Toxins) from Texas A& M University dated April 11, 2007 thal reported an
occupational exposure to Brucelfa. Based upon the review of the report, the Centers for Discase
Control and Prevention (CDC), Division of Select Agents and Toxins (DSAT) has additional
gueshions:

L. Please provide a copy of the medical surveillance plan and describe how the follow up. was

' - conducted as a result of the incident.

2. Please provide all occupational health records pertaining to the exposed individuals and any
individuals that have presented with symptoms associated with a possible exposure to
Coxiella, Brucella, or Mycobacterium tuberculosis.,

t - 3. Please provide documentation in regards o the risk assessment that was preformed for work
with Brucella. ,

4. Please describe the decontamination procedures used for the asrosol chamber and any
modifications incorporated to these procedures as a rosult of this incident.

5. Please provide all standard operating procedures (SOPs) and certification documents as it
relates to the actosel chamber. -

6. Please provide a summary of events that occurred with this incident including the follow-up
review that your entity conducted to assure that any other similar incidents do not occurred.

7. Since your entity failed to meet the reporting requirements of 42 C.F.R. § 73.19, please
provide a plan of how Texas A& M University will achieve compliance with 42 C.F.R. 73.
In addition, please explain if your entity failed to meet other required federal and state
reporting requirements,

8. Please provide access logs for Room * 7 and all rooms were work with Brucella is -
porformed. _

9. Please explain how your incident response plan, security plan, and biosafety plan have been
modified as a result of this incident. :

This document is intended for the exclusive use of the recipientis} named abave. Il may contain sensitive information that is proteciad, privileged,
or confidlential, and. it should not be disseminated, distibuted, or copied o petsons. not authtnzed to receive such iniornation. f you are not ths

intendag recipient(s), any dissemination, distibution, o capying is striclty protihited: i you ihink you have receivad #is document in gwor, please
notify \he-sender immadiately a5d destoy Ihe-onginal.
Attachment #3
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10. Picase provide any personal prolective equipment or entry requirements that may be nceded
prior to entry into your jaboratories,

1. Please provide any documents regarding unexpected animal itiness.

12, Please provide an assessment of the risks of continuing to utilize the zerosol chamber.

13. Please provide a detail description of the measures implemented to protect the cmployces
from exposures while decontaminating the aerosol chamber including any erihanced personal
protective equipment (PPE) utilized and the medical surveillunce activities tmplememed The
long term follow-up of employecs should be included in this response.

The DSAT will be conducting an inspection of your entity on April 16, 2007 1o assess the measures
implemented by Texas A& M University to protect the staff and public from exposure to pathogenic
mistoorganisi, the measures implemented to prevent further incidents and to evaluaic your entity’s
compliance with the select agent regulations. Please make available all staff members involved in
the incident described in your report dated April 11, 2007 to be interviewed by the inspection team.

On Apri] 16, 2007, the following representatives from the CDC will be visiting Texas A& M
University:

Dianc Martin, Lead Inspector
Richard Henkel, Biosafety Officer
Melissa Resmick, EIS Officer .

Flease have the response and any supporting docimentation available for the inspectors upon
their arrival to your entity on April 16, 2007,

Please contact Lo Bane, Compliance Officer with {he DSAT at 404-718-2006 or al the address
listed below if you have questions.

Raobbin Weyant, PlD, CAPT, USPHS

Director :

Division of Select Agents and Toxins

Coordinating Office of Terrorism Preparedness and
Emergency Response

This document is.intenided Tor the exciugive use of the recipionl(s) named. above, it may contaln sensitive information that is protected, privileged,
or confidentlal, and i should hot be disseminated, distibuted, o copwd to persons nol 2uthonzed to redeive such infurmation. ¥ you areé not the
inerded recipientfsy, dny disseminalion, distribution, or copying is strictly prohibitéd. If you think you have recsived this dotumernt inefer, please
nolify The sender imimedistely and disstroy the original,
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. . ' FAX HEADER 1: SELECT AGENTS PROGRAM 4047182068
FaX HEADER 2:

TRANSMITIED/STORED : APR. 13 2047 2:32PH
FILeE WOBE OFPTION ADDRESS RESUYLT PAGE
9688 MEMORY TX 979 862 3176 oK 12
L
RZASQE\_-'”)RM:;:;“SP 2 1L TNE Fuaaly E~2) DBuUYw . ’
A NG ANZwWE R Ewa] NO FACSIMILE CONNECTI1ON

Public Henlth Sorvice
Cenyiers for Lhsonsn Caomtos]
and Prevention (CDC)

Adtiante C3A 30333

April 13, 2007

Riohard Bwing, Responsible Official

Tecas Ade M Univorsity Regiswation #C20060605-0459)
1500 Researeh Paricivey, Suite B150, TAMLT 1186
Colleges Statibn, T 77843-1183

Fax: (979) B62-3176 '

Subjuot: 42 CER_ § 73.19 (Motification of thefl, Toss, or relonsc)
Dear Dr. BEwing:

-

- This isto acknowiedge ths receipt of the APHISATDC Form 3 (Raport of Thefl, Loss, or Relsase of
Setoct Agonts and Toxing) Hom Texas Ak N University datcd April 11, 2007 that roported an
eecopational cxposure to Arucello. Based upern the réview of the report, the Convers for Dizease
Conirol and Prevention (CIDC), Division of Select Agonts and Toxins (DSAT) bes sdditional
Questions: ’

1. Please provide a copy of the medical surveillance plan and describe how the follow up was
conducred as g result of the incident, .

2. Please provide el ccoupativnal heslth records pertaining to the expesed individuals and #ny

individuals that hove presented with Syroploms associsted with u posyible cxposure w

Coxiella, Bruceila, oF Mycobacierium tubraraudosis.

Pleuse provide docurmentation in regards to the risk assessment that was prefomned for worg

with Brucelia; : i

Please describe the decontmmination procedures used for the aerose] chamiber and any

modifications incorporated to these procedurss as a result of this incident.

Pleass provide all standard operating procedures (SOPs} and cortificafion documsnts as it

relares o the acrosal charaber, o

Please provide a summary of events that cootzred with this incident including the follow-up

Tevigw that your entity conducted to assure tha sny other sheilar incidents do fiot catvirred.

Since your entity fuiled to mest the reparting fequirements of 42 CE.R. § 73.19, please -

provide 4 plan of how Toxes A& M Universtty witl achiove complianco with 42 C.F.R, 73.

in addition, please explain if your entity failed to meet other required fodersl and state

reporting reqitrements,

Pisase provide access logs for Room ;and all rooms weore work with Brucelia.is

perforimed. : .

8. Please explain how your incident response plm, svourity plan, and iasafety plan have been

miodified a5 a vesult of this incident. -

L I

b

®

Thie document is tundsd Eor e eoctusive sisie of he recisinia) ramed aboe B may Shrtain sacaitive informaton st s prEiacied, privilogud,
o confiderdial, dnd abea aot e denbiminglod, o W, oF cofied. to Bomony not muthort b2 rag uen inftrmation. If you sna v tho
Itamdad rocinientle), sy dig OpisitbiAion, or copying I3 stnetty srotilbied, M you think you have ressived s docoament i BT Pl
Hally o waricles trirrisoi ey e dewuny e origie
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Ta: Richard E. Ewing, Responsible Official (R. Q)
Vieg President for Research
Texas AdM University
1112 TAMU _ :
College Station, TX 77843-1112
FAX: (979)845-1855

e

From: Centers for Disease Controt and Prevention, Division of Select Agents and Toxing
Date: © June 7, 2006
Re: Facility Inspection Report Response: Texas A&M University

Thank you for your inspection report respenses dated May 4, 2006 and May 15, 2006 10-the deficiencies Tisted in the
report from the Pebruary 22-24, 2006 inspection of your facility. Please submit additional information with
supporting documentalion, as noted below, by Fune 135, 2006

Observation. 3

Requirement: An individual or entity required fo register under this part must develop and implement 2 written
biosafety plan thal is commensurate with the risk of the agent or toxin, given its mtended use. The blosalety plan
raust contain sufficient informatior: and documentation to describe the bivsafuty and containment procedures. {42

Ty r -

CER 73.12¢)) ' ' T

Qbservation: PI Samuel’s and Tesh™s biosatety plans did not contain sufficient site specific information and
\ documentation to describe the biosafery and containment procedures for work with select agents in laboratory suite
: / Please provide documentation that addresses this requirement.

Entity Response; Tesh-No experiments utilizing the select agent E. coli DH3alpha{pCKS-; |2) are carried out in
the suire. Room 7 &is used to store the.agent and the registration has been amended to reflect this, Al wark
on the-agent is carried out.in Room - PL Samuel’s plan has bee updated and included in Appendix D.

CDC Response: Please provide updated docurnientation that Pl Samuel’s biosafety plan includes, cither by
inclusion or reference, afl of the standard BSL-3 micrabiological practices as outlined in “Blosafety it
Micrebiotogical-and Biomedical Laboratories” 4% ed., p. 27-28.

Observation 12

: L . - N -
Requirement: The plon must be reviewed morivally and revised as necessary. Drills or exercises must be conducted
ai Jeast annually to test and evaluate the effectiveness of the plan. The plan must be reviewed and revised, as

necessary, after any drill or exercise and after any incident. [42 CER 73,14 -{d)}

Obscrvation: The entity incident cesponse plan provided to inspectors was not dated. Although the plan ’ .
documentation indicates that it will be reviewed and revised annually, there was no signaturs page or pther method

10 document review, The plan stated that biannual exercises 10 train response personngl and evaliate the adequacy

of the plan would be- conducted bul there was no evidence of an exercise being completed. The incident response

plan tempiate used by the principal investigators did not inclnde 2 provision for drills or exereises 1o be conducied at

keast annually. Pleasc provide documentation to address these requirements. : -

Entiiy Response: The entity response plan (crisis manageinent plan) reviewed by the ingpection team wusd copy
of information conwined by our website, A signed and dated copy is atached. [Sec Appqgﬁihmmﬁlacidm
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response pian templite, 1o beused by all principal investigazors, now includes 2 pm‘v lmm fer dritls or exeroises ©
be conducted a1 least annually, and is anashed. [See Appendix £ Y

+

CDC Response: The entity erisis managument plan {CMIF) states thal the OMP shall be roviewed annually and
tnodified as necessary. 1talso states that biannual exervises shall be held to trzin response persounel and evaluate
the adequacy of the CMP. The extity crisis management plar submined w CDC on May 13, 2006 is signed and
dated in March 2003. The CMP packet does comiain & “record of changes” log noting updaiss to the plan from 2004
and 2005 but it is not clear that this is a review or that these changes have been approved by managements,

Pieass provide dosumentation that this plan has been reviewed ainudlly as stated. Please alvo provide an sxamyple
of a report of a biannual exercise completed w .evaluate the adequacy of the CMP and {rain response personnel.

Observation 26

Requirement: Biological safety cabinets and other physical containment devices are used whenever conducting
procedures with a potential for creating nerosols, These include necropsy of infected animais, harvesting of tissues
or {luids: from infected animals or eggs, or intranas# inoculation of animals. At BSL-3 all work shouvid be done ina
primary harrier, ctherwise respirators should be worn by personnel in the room. [BMBL, p. 66, C(43}

Observation: Laboratory room”™ . i the :antains an acrolization chamber used by Pt Ficht for
work with sclect agent. There werv no SObs avastable tor review by inspectors o ensure aparopriate safery
‘precautions have been cstablished for this procedure. Please provide decymentation that this deparmure has been
addressed,

Entity Response: SOP's for tht:-aewlizazi.en chamber are now in place. [See Appendix H]

CDC Response; As discussed during the February 22-24 inspecrion, it was stated that Principal Tnvestigator Ficht
would be performing aerosel work with sefect agents, Please be reminded that 42 CFR 73.7 states that priorto
changas in the activities involving dny sclect agents or woxins the certificate of registration must be dmended by the
entity to include that work. Prior to the work being approved by the Select Agent Prograrn, stafdayd gperatiog
procedures regarding the acrosel challunge will need to be submitted to address the following additional issues:
1} Please describe the mechanism-used 1o ensure that afier the asrosol procedure, there is no residual select
ageqt remaining on the animal surface.
2) Are there any lzboratory air sampling procedures te verify mo equipmment leaks?
3} How does the laboratorian know the nebalizer is functioning properly and not lezking?
4) [Isthe HEPA filtation system for acrolizer equipment cenificd?
3} Isthe microisolitor cuge {iltration system certified?
6} Has it been determined how many air changesfhour it takes to remove infected particles after cach run?
7} Are the animals anacsthetized prior to transfer back o the micruisolator cages? M not, describe the
proceduce if animals cscape. Describe the procedure for animai blled or scratches.
£) Please provide more detail op the cleaning of the chamber 1o ensure that the worker is nat exposed 0 any
agent during the cleaning process.
%) 15 there any air sampling of the chamber afler cleaning? -
10} -How has it been determined zhal dlppmu the pmbe in 10%% bleach provides adequate contadt time for
decontaminalion? D x .
. . . ¥ . "
‘Based upon review of Amendmznt #29968, & is the Sslect Agent Program’s undersianding that Principal
Investigator Sumuel is currently approved to perform aerosolization work with Coxicila bumetii. Please provide .
clarification of the cumeat status of this work including how the aerusol procedure is being conducted.

Observation 38

Requirement: HEPA filtered exhaust air from # Class I biosafety cabinet can be recirculated into the animal room
if the cabine is tested and-certified at least annually, When exhaust air from Clags [ cabiness is 1o be dischurzed to
the outside thirough the building exhaustair, system, the cabinets must be connected i a manner that aveids any
" interference with the air halance of the cabinets-or the building exhaust sysiem. When Tlass H biological safety
cabinets are used, they should be dircctly connected 1o the exhaust system. 1 Class Hi cabinets are conneered to the

Enclosure 1
Page 18 of 22




April 11, 2005

VIA FAUSIAILE o 404/59%.2265
(Driginal to follow vig U8, Maily
Diane P. Martin, Lead Inspecior
Séleot Agent Provram
Departoent of Health and Human Serviees

Cenfers for Discase Control and Prevention (CDC)
1600 Clifton Road N.E., MS .79
Atlani, Georgia 30333 -

RE: FACILITY INSPECTION REPORT - TENAS A & M UNIVERSITY
e . Diear Mrs. Martn:

We gre in reecipt of your letter, dated March 35, 2003 derailing the ohiservations made
during the February 15 - 18, 20035 CDC Facility Inspeetion for Texas A & M Uiversity,
The University has carefully reviewed the observations and offers its comments within
Attachment 1-A-03.

If you require additional information or clavification un the commients contuined wihin the

aflackment, please feel free to contact Angelin Raines, Rescarch Comphiance Dhrecter, i
my office 2t U79/847-9362 or araines@vpnnail bimo edy.

We appreciate vour continued support and guidanes on compliancy issues in the CDO
Selest Agent Program,

Texas ABN Universily
. . C20034123-0124
Res;mctm[ly submitted,

N

Accesnsion &

47587
- Fagihity inspection Repor
Richard E. th" Ré&p@ﬁse {via ma"'}
o Responsible Offkeial
< Total #.of Pages: .
b = Artachment 13
=
o x¢:  Dr. Robonn M. Gates
= .
e President -
fand RacoivadiGanerated:
i 41512005 at 10:27 AH -
) Dr. D.w:gi B. Priar 1; + Bare :
“a } 3 wpul Bate:
o Exccutive Viee Presidentand Provost 51312008
b ,
- N : wxned Ir
& Or, Fulter W. Baver _ | -:“f:"":“ 4
,’ A swere it Wieer Fryoncielard Far 12w 'au_u i)
% Assocate v m.‘i restdent tor Reveaech " FOR OFFICIAL USE GHLY
R4

Attachment #5
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B -

A ATTACHMENT 1.4-g5
£ . CONFIDENTIAL
2005 CDC INSPECTION - FIRST RESPONSE

13. Requirement To apply for a cerificate of registration an entjpy musy, in accordance with § 73.21, submit the
infonnation.req:uested o the HHS Secretary or the USDha Secretary as specified in the registration application
package [CDC Form 0.1319. Information submitted will be used to determine whether the applicant would
be eligible o conduct activities under this parr, Minimum information required includes the logation,
including building and room and floor plans for each building and reom, where each sclect agent or loxin will
be stored O used. [42 CFR 73.7 (B2)iiN

i Cbe Observation: _
Equipment ang structures have been added 1o
rooms. SAand ERge plans’
on file at the CDE Sejuer Agent Program do n
include this added equipment,

TAMU Cominent;

Bidgs. _ e currently utilized for research
not involving sefeet agents but are occcasionaliy
| maodified to allow for this-type of research to ogeyr,
! Al the time of inspection, ng SBAT work was
OCCurming in any of the __ ¥buildings,
_ When selcet agents.are in yse, afl buildirgs heusing. j
I the select agents are returned to the original design /
I {large anima) stalls) as were viewed in 5 1
}

e i

o 80d g gensen 1o the fipor
plans on file at CDE. Prior 1o work with 3BATs,
e AN e retumed iy

the original des; &1 2s shown on the floor plans
submitted. o The,

14, .Requimm’ent: A certificate of registration will be valid o ly f
specified activities gnd Tacations 4 ' i "

ChC Observatian:
Standard epetating procedureg for PI Tsoljs

identified Tecombinant antibigtic resistance work
with a selegt 3gent, The P'g statement of work
tom the regisnation did not include this

I

15. Requiternen;: Personne] wash their hands after handling cultures and animals, afier removing gloves, and
b&fnre-lcaving the anima| faciliny. {BMBL, p.64, A(10)] ' Ii
H

‘ Pape50f13
CADGCUME] HAGINLOCA LS Tempinse D(ﬁ!nx}ac:m.—ﬂirsmmpqnsc,doc
41172005
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,FedEx | Ship Manager | Label Page 1 of 1
Fézimed Ag;?t‘;r ieDgr’::?}m 404)718-2032 F E : i%gtat;z L%4MAYG?
Express System¥, 865469HINETTO11
1600 Ciifion Road, NE Account. § 17t
HS A46 Dalivery Address Bar Code
i e
SHIPTO:  (000)000-0000 BILLSENDER Reft ' )
Richard Ewing irvoice #
Texas A&M University P
1186 TAMU
1500 Research Parkway,Suite B150
College Station, TX 778431112 : -
: STANDARD OVERNIGHT MON
. Deliver By
Rke 7929 8103 6260 ‘0 TMAW
1AH AA

Srupfang Latiel Your shipment g complete

77843

|

-TX-US

I

1, Use:the'Print feature from your browser {0 send this page 1o your laser or inkiet printer.

2. Fold the printad page along the horizontal fine.

3. Place labie! in shipping pouch and affix it to your shipment 50 that the barcede portion of the label can be read and scanned.
Warning: Use only the printed originat 1abel for shipping. Using a photocopy of this tabel for shipping purposes is fraudulent’

and could resultin additionat billing charges,

along with the cancellation of your FedEx account nurnber.

Use of this system constilutes your agreement to the servica conditions in the curreni FedEx Service Guide, available on fedex.com.
EadEx wilf not be responsible for any claim in excess of $100 per package, whelher the result ofioss, damage, delay, non-delivery, misdelivery, or

risinformation, unless you declare a higher-value, pay an additional charge, document your
from FedEx-for any loss, including intdnsic

the cutrent FedEx Service Guide apply. Your right to recaver

actual toss. and fle-a tmely ¢laim. Limitations found in
value of the package, loss of sales, income

intareat, profit, attomey's feas, costs, and other forms of damage whether diract, incidentatl, consequential, or specialis frmited 10 the greater of $100

or the authorzed declared value. Recovery cannot exceed aclual

documentad Toss. Maximum lor fterms of exraordinary valuais $500, e.g. jawelry,

pracious. melals, negotisble instrumants and other items fisted in our Service Guide, Written claims must be filed within strict time limits, seé current

FedEx Service Guide.
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: x x COMMUNICATION RESULT REPORT ( MAY. 4. 2007 1:55PM } = =x =

FAX HWEADER 1: SELECT AGENTS PROGRAM 4047182096
FAX HEADER Z:

TRANSMITTED/STORED : MAY. 4. 2007 1:49FM

_F FL'E MOQE_ OPTION ADDRESS RESULT PAGE
1032 MEMORY TX 919798451855 0K 20/20
Ao T TmmmmETm T
E~1 THAaMG WP OR OLINE FAL>L E -~ 2 BUSY
E—Sg NGO ANSWER E»-4'g NGO FACSIMILE CONNECTION
, |
-~ - DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES Public Health Service
C. ' Centers for Dissase Coatrol

and Prevention (CDC)
Atlanta GA 30333

May 4, 2007

Richard Ewing, Responsgible Official )

Tooxas A M University (Registration #C20060605-04883
1112 TAMU

College Station, TX 77843-1112

TAX: (870) B45-1858

Subject; Texas Ad M University: Report of Site Visit; Reqguest for Additional Information

On April 11, 2007, the Centers for Disease Contral and Prevention (CIHD), Division of Select Agents and
Toxing (DSATY recoived the APHIS/CDC Form 3 (Report of Theft, Loss, or Releaso of Select Agerns and
Toxivs) from Texas A&M University (TANMU) repoiting the ocoupaticnal exposure 1o Brugella on Fsbroary
9, 2006 that resultéd in infection of & laboratory worker.

During the period April 16, 2007 through April 18, 2007, the following represontatives from the CIXC visited
TAMU Iocated at 11 12 TAMUI, College Station, TX 77843

Driane Martin, Lead Inspector
Richard Henkel, Biosafoty Manager
Melissa Rosnick, Epidemic Intelligence Scrvice Officer

Individuals fromh TAMU present during the site wisit included:

Richard Bwing, Vice Pragident (VP) of Research, Responsible Official

Angelia Raines, Dir-Office of Research Compliance, alterpate Responsible Official
Jahn Salsman, Director, Bnvirenmental Health snd Safety Pepartanent (EXSI)
Bront Mattox, Blosafoty Officer, EHSD, nltvrnate Responsible Offtoial

Chris Meyer, Asst. VP, Safety & Security .
“Piffany Agnew, Environmental Biosafsty Program Coordinator

Thomas Ficht, Professor, Principal Investigator

L.G. Adama, Associate Dean, Principal Investigator

Angela Arcnas, Craduate Student '
# ; £ #, Research Associate ' -
Jianwu Pel, Assistant Research Sciontis

Linda Clark; Asgistant Executive Dircctor, Scott & White Clinic

Jack Crouch, Qcéupstionea] Medicine Supervisor, Scott & White Clinig
Melissa Kakl-MceDonagh, Postdoctoral Ressurch Follow

“The purpose of the site visit was to (1) review the svents surrmunding the occupational exposure to Brucaella
that occirred on February 9, 2006 in Room of Building’ .and assess the measures implemantiod to
provent other such incidents; (2) assess measivos implemented by TAMU to protect the stafT and public from
exposere to pathegenic micreorganisms; and (3) and to otherwise oy souc.entity’s compliance with tha
select agent regulations (7 G.F.R, part 331, 2 C.F.R. part 121,42 C 73 .

Fnclosure 1
Page 22 of 22



